
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

January 4, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Classrooms 1, 2 & 3 
 

    

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Our Mission and Vision Ed Tardoni 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policies (For Action) Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel 

1. Workplace Violence Prevention Policy  

2. Workplace Violence Prevention Program  

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. Finance and Audit Committee Charter (For Review) Ed Tardoni 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Taylor Jones 

B. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

C. Finance & Audit Committee Ed Tardoni  

1. Bad Debt (For Action) 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey  

E. Foundation Board Taylor Jones 

F. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Barbara Sowada 

I. Joint Conference Committee Barbara Sowada 

IX. Contract Review Suzan Campbell 

A. Consent Agenda (For Action) 

1. iProtean Subscription Agreement 

X. Medical Staff Report Dr. Brianne Crofts, Medical Staff President  

XI. Good of the Order           Barbara Sowada 

XII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

1/60



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

2/60



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

December 7, 2022 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

December 7, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order.  

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Mr. Taylor Jones, Mr. Marty Kelsey, Dr. Barbara Sowada, and Mr. Ed Tardoni.  

Excused: Ms. Kandi Pendleton. 

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Dr. Sowada noted the attendance of Mr. Jeff Smith from the Sweetwater County Board of County 

Commissioners and thanked him for attending.   

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Jones read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Ms. Richardson shared a story from a member of the MHSC Patient and Family Advisory Council 

(PFAC). At one of the first meetings, someone said the chairs for visitors in the exam rooms in the 

Emergency Room were very uncomfortable, especially if you have to sit in them for extended 

periods of time. The PFAC helped select new chairs. The same person recently visited the ER with 

a friend who was the patient and told Ms. Richardson how much it meant to sit on the chairs the 

Hospital asked community members to help select. She said they really were more comfortable 

and improved the experience. Ms. Richardson said it is important to show our community we want 

feedback, we listen, and we respond.  

 

Dr. Sowada recognized Ms. Tiffany Marshall, Foundation Executive Director, for her presentation 

at the Rock Springs Chamber of Commerce luncheon. She said it was about the value of the 

Foundation and was very informative.  

 

Dr. Kari Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, said a patient who had a mammogram visited the 

administration suite to tell us about her positive experience and let us know Dr. Christopher 

3/60



 

 

Minutes of the December 7, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

Honeycutt took extra time with her and made a difference for her. The patient was very 

complimentary of the entire experience.  

 

AGENDA 

 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Kelsey. 

Motion carried.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the November 2, 2022, regular meeting as presented was 

made by Mr. Tardoni second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried.  

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

 

Dr. Sowada noted a memo in the meeting packet from Ms. Suzan Campbell, In House Counsel, 

regarding her service on the Wyoming Miner’s Board. Dr. Sowada said she is glad the Hospital is 

making it possible for Ms. Campbell to attend and participate.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 
 

There were no items of old business.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Employee Policies – Workplace Violence Prevention Policy and Program 

 

Dr. Sowada asked Dr. Ann Marie Clevenger, Chief Nursing Officer, to provide a brief review of 

the policy and program. Dr. Clevenger said there is a great deal of information coming forward on 

ways to protect staff. The Hospital has created a Workplace Violence Team. The policy and 

program contain a lot of information and we are trying to get the wording right. Mr. Kelsey said 

the Hospital seems focused on the workplace and staff with this policy. He asked if there is another 

policy that deals with visitors. Dr. Clevenger said there is a policy that deals with contraband that 

references anything that could cause harm to a patient or staff. Mr. Tardoni said anything can be a 

weapon, so we have to be careful when identifying weapons. Mr. Kelsey said he wants to make 

sure in this policy or some other policy that not just employees are subject to these guidelines. He 

asked for the Hospital’s policy on concealed carry. Mr. Phillips said he will follow up on Mr. 

Kelsey’s questions. Ms. Deb Sutton, Marketing Director, said we have signs posted around the 

Hospital referencing firearms. Mr. Kelsey said there has been a tendency to want to approve items 

on first reading as a rule and he feels it should be the exception. He said he thinks it is a governance 

issue and we should be cognizant and careful about our approach to the process. Dr. Sowada said 

we will take the policy and program back to the Human Resources Committee. She said the 

Governance Committee can discuss the review and approval process. She said continuous 

improvement is our motto.  

 

  

4/60



 

 

Minutes of the December 7, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

Medical Staff Privilege forms – Orthopedic Surgery and Emergency Surgery 

 

Ms. Kerry Downs, Director of Medical Staff Services, said she has been revising the privileges 

forms. The two forms presented have been approved by the Medical Staff.  Dr. Crofts said there 

will be many more coming as they update all specialties. The motion to approve the Orthopedic 

Surgery and Emergency Surgery privilege forms as presented was made by Mr. Tardoni; second 

by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson provided a report including a strategic plan update. She thanked Dr. Israel Stewart 

and Shawn Rockey, P.A. for presenting to the PFAC in November. Dr. Toby Marshall, OB/GYN, 

will join us January 16. Clifton Larson Allen completed the charge capture review and we have 

developed interim and long-term goals. Ms. Tami Love, Chief Financial Officer, and her team are 

working on financial improvement projects. The Wyoming State Loan and Investment Board has 

flagged our projects to move forward. We are scheduled to review December 15 in Cheyenne. We 

submitted two projects for review. Ms. Richardson thanked the team involved with developing the 

projects and requests. We are moving forward with our “I Make A Difference” service standards. 

Senior Leaders will round on staff in January to share with everyone our excitement about this 

project. We served lunch to over 250 veterans and guests in honor of Veterans Day. Ms. 

Richardson thanked everyone involved in making this a huge success. We participated in the Rock 

Springs Lighted Parade December 3. Ms. Richardson invited the Trustees to join us for the staff 

holiday lunch or dinner on December 14. Ms. Richardson extended an invitation to everyone to 

join us for our community event the evening of December 16. Ms. Richardson recognized and 

thanked the County Commissioners. She said she is grateful for the relationship over the years in 

taking care of our community. She thanked Commissioner Smith for his support and accessibility. 

Ms. Richardson said all of the Commissioners have helped us get a lot done over the years. She 

said she is looking forward to working with the new Commissioners to continue the great work 

we are doing in serving our community. Ms. Richardson thanked the Trustees and the Medical 

Staff. She said she appreciates their passionate advocacy for care for our community. Ms. 

Richardson expressed appreciation to staff. The staff and providers are the heart of the Hospital. 

She said our community is in great hands and she sees great things coming in the future. Dr. 

Sowada said the work done here is amazing. She thanked Ms. Richardson for being a talented, 

committed leader and said she is a great guide. Dr. Sowada said we are all in it together and 

everyone is moving in the same direction.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

Quality Committee 
 

Mr. Jones said he asked the Committee that rather than go over every single time every month, to review a 

couple of things they did well in the month and a couple of things to improve on and do some goal setting. 

He said he thinks that will be productive. Mr. Jones said the Committee talked about MIPS, MQSA, and 

how we improved falls and bar code scanning.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said a chair report is in the packet. 

5/60



 

 

Minutes of the December 7, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Tardoni said the Committee reviewed the charter and will propose a change in the near future. 

They want to preserve the ability for physicians to attend the Committee meetings when they can, 

but their main priority is taking care of patients, so they want to preserve that physicians have the 

opportunity to attend but not required to attend. Mr. Tardoni noted information in the packet 

around goals outlined.  

 

Bad Debt: The motion to approve the net potential bad debt of $1,594,650.36 as presented was 

made by Mr. Tardoni; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

I.S. Report: Dr. Sowada complimented Mr. Tardoni, Ms. Love, and the Committee for including 

the Information Services Report in the packet. 

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the information is in the meeting packet. He said an annual plan morphed into a 

larger range plan that looks at various capital construction initiatives, construction, and a priority 

matrix where each project receives a score. Mr. Kelsey said the staff are coming up with some 

good ideas. When the information is ready, it will come to the Board. Dr. Sowada said this formal 

step to look to the future is great. 

 

Foundation 

 

Ms. Marshall provided an update. She said she wants to set up a Joint Board Meeting to review 

details of the Foundation Strategic Plan. Dr. Sowada thanked Ms. Marshall for all she does and 

said it is appreciated. Mr. Jones asked Trustees to let him know if they want to participate in a Red 

Tie Gala auction item entry from the Trustees.  

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the packet. 

 

Governance Committee 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee did not meet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee did not meet. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee did not meet. 

 

  

6/60



 

 

Minutes of the December 7, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts said the General Medical Staff met in November and re-elected officers. Dr. Crofts will 

continue as President, Dr. Alicia Gray is Vice-President, and Dr. Steven Croft is 

Secretary/Treasurer. Dr. Crofts said she was impressed with the turnout of Medical Staff to the 

meeting. They received a short presentation from Press Ganey geared more to physicians. Part of 

the presentation touched on how to improve getting surveys returned. Dr. Crofts said we continue 

recruiting a general surgeon. Dr. Sowada thanked Dr. Crofts and asked her to thank the Medical 

Staff for the Board.     

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

Mr. Tardoni said he sat in at the Human Resources meeting and heard about MOAB training. He 

suggested one of the trainers provide an overview as board education. His concern is if training is 

happening at the Hospital, especially in this area, then the Trustees should know what is being 

taught. 

 

Ms. Richardson thanked Senior Leaders and her direct reports for their hard work and dedication.  

 

Dr. Sowada thanked Commissioner Smith on behalf of the Board for being our liaison. She 

expressed appreciation to the full Board of County Commissioners for being our champions and 

cheerleaders. Commissioner Smith said when he was elected and choices were being made on 

assignments, he said he wanted to work with the Hospital. He said we are so fortunate to have this 

Hospital and leadership and staff.  

 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session was made by Mr. Jones; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion 

carried.   

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

At 5:01 p.m., the motion to leave executive session and return to regular session was made by Mr. 

Jones; second by Mr. Tardoni. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the list of clinical privileges to the Medical Staff as reviewed in executive 

session was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. Motion carried. 

 

Credentials Committee Recommendations from November 8, 2022 

1. Initial Appointment from Locum Tenens to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Rasheel Chowdhary, Pulmonary Medicine 

2. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Mark Reilly, Radiation Oncology 

 

7/60



 

 

Minutes of the December 7, 2022 Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

3. Initial Appointment to Non-Physician Provider Staff (1 year ) 

 Elisa Robbins, Licensed Clinical Social Work (SWCS) 

4. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Lawrence Lauridsen, Occupational & Family Medicine 

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Patrick Plummer, Sleep Medicine 

 Dr. Lee Chung, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Jennifer Majersik, Tele Stroke (U of U) 

 Dr. Christian Van Kirk, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 

The motion to approve the employment contract presented by the CEO and authorize the CEO to 

sign the contract as discussed in executive session was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Jones. 

Motion carried. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:02 p.m.   

      

 

         

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 
 

8/60



9/60



10/60



11/60



12/60



13/60



14/60



15/60



16/60



17/60



18/60



19/60



Finance & Audit.ag15 Page 1  

Board Charter for Finance & Audit Committee 
 

 
Category: Finance and Audit Committee 
Title: Finance and Audit Committee 
Original adoption: June 14, 2010 
Revision: 2020, 2023 

 
 
 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of the Finance and Audit Committee is to assist the Board of Trustees 
(Board) in its fiduciary and oversight duties as set forth below. 
 

Authority 
  The committee has no expressed or implied power or authority. 

 

Responsibilities 
 
In fulfilling its charge, the Finance and Audit Committee is responsible for the 
following activities and functions: 

 Reviews, monthly, the financial status of the hospital and reports to the Board. 
 Reviews the fiscal year operating and capital budgets of the hospital prepared by Senior 

Leadership; makes recommendations to the Board regarding approval of said budgets. 

 Monitors the overall financial performance and risk of the hospital in light of approved 
budgets, long term trends, and industry standards. 

 Reviews on a regular basis hospital financial statements. 

 Reviews and recommends to Board all Capital purchases > $25,000.00. 
 Recommends to the Board policies designed to strengthen the financial health of the 

hospital and clinics. 

 Recommends to the Board key financial objectives to be established and monitored. 

 Reviews hospital investments; makes recommendations to Senior Leadership as 
deemed desirable. 

 Monitors the hospital’s debt obligations; reviews borrowing initiatives proposed by 
Senior Leadership; makes recommendations to the Board as deemed necessary. 

 Reviews the Board’s policy regarding financial assistance for the poor and uninsured, in 
compliance with State statute 18-8-106. 

 Provides oversight over external auditing matters by: 
o Reviews the Board’s external auditing policy; recommends changes if deemed 

Board of Trustees Orientation Resource Handbook 

20/60



Finance & Audit.ag15 Page 2  

necessary. 
o Recommends to the Board external auditors after reviewing the composition of 

the audit team, proposed compensation, and other relevant matters. 

o May meet annually with the external auditors separate from Hospital 
management to review the annual audit and associated management letter. 

o Reviews audit findings and recommends to the Board any action plans that 
should be taken to strengthen internal controls and to otherwise improve the 
hospital’s accounting and management practices. 

o Makes other related recommendations to the Board associated with the auditing 
function. 

Composition 

The Finance and Audit Committee consists of two (2) members of the Board, including the 
Board Treasurer, who functions as Chair, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and 
Controller serve as voting members of the committee. The Chief Nursing Officer, Chief 
Clinical Officer, Director of Patient Financial Services, Director of Information Technology, 
Director of Materials Management serve as non-voting members.  Two (2) physicians, as 
appointed by the Board President, serve as non-voting members of the committee, and may 
attend as available. 

Meeting Schedule 
Monthly; additional meetings may be called by the Committee Chair in consultation with the 
Chief Executive Officer, or as needed. 

Reports: 

The committee will receive and review the following reports, and provide the Board with an 
executive summary: 

• For Board approval: 
 Investment reports, as necessary 
 Bad Debt report 
 Annual operating and capital budget 
 Annual financial audit report and management letter 

• For informational purpose: 
 Financial statements 
 Key financial ratios 
 Key operating benchmarks 
 Payer trend reports 
 Quarterly bond covenant compliance letter 
 Annual Standard & Poor’s credit rating review 
 Chargemaster review summary every three years 

Note: As used herein, the term “hospital” includes the “clinics” when such 
inclusion is appropriate. 

21/60



December Quality Chair Report 
 
 
Meeting held on December 22nd, 8:15 AM 
 
Nothing under Old Business! 
 
Under New Business we reviewed the Patient Safety Plan as it was up for approval.  Changes 
were suggested so this will be reworked and brought back for approval next month. 
 
Under Informational Items for Review we spent most of our time discussing control charts 
concentrating on topics such as Sepsis, falls, and medication scanning. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at approximately 9:15 
 
 

22/60



Chairs Report 

Human Resources Committee Meeting – December 21, 2022 

Items to take note of - 

 Open positions and contract staffing numbers have seen a significant decrease since the peak 

during the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 HR Staff and Irene report that the contract staff expense, while still over budget, is significantly 

reduced. 

For detailed information please see the reports and minutes of the meeting. 

Kandi Pendleton 

23/60



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft 
Wednesday – December 21, 2022 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Kandi Pendleton, Barbara Sowada 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Suzan Campbell, Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Tami Love, Shawn Bazzanella, Eddie Boggs, Ruthann 
Wolfe, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
Kandi called the meeting to order and welcomed everyone.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Barbara, second by Irene. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

Amber reported the November minutes were not available due to computer issues. The November and 
December minutes will be approved at the January meeting.  
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber reviewed the turnover report and said we are at 25% for the rolling 12 months period which is 
still below the national average of 27-28%. 
 
Open Positions 

 

Amber reported we currently have 50 open positions and we are focusing recruitment efforts on critical 
positions.  
 
Contract Staffing 
 
We have seen a big drop off in contract staff numbers. Tami said we are still over budget with costs at 
$335,000 for November but down significantly. Irene said we were over $1M in May and April of last 
year and we knew we could not sustain those high numbers. Kandi said the numbers are moving in the 
right direction. Barbara said there have been impressive efforts in this area.  
 
Employee Injury & Illness Reporting  
 
Amber said there are no injuries/illnesses to report. 
 
Old Business 

Workplace Violence Policy: 
 
Suzan submitted a written visitor policy for no weapons thinking that this is what Marty was looking for.  
After discussion it was decided that this policy would be more detrimental and be a burden on our 
security team.  The committee decided that we don’t need a visitor policy just employee policy.  The 
employee policy will be submitted to the board. 

24/60



 

Minutes of the December 21, 2022 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

 
New Business 
 
Employee engagement Survey: 
 
Waiting for review by senior leadership of results. 
 
Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting is scheduled – 1/16/2023 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

25/60



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

 

NARRATIVE TO NOVEMBER 2022 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 

 

THE BOTTOM LINE.    The bottom line from operations for November is a loss of 

$684,082, compared to a loss of $81,845 in the budget.  This yields a -7.91% operating 

margin for the month compared to -.93% in the budget. The year-to-date loss is 

$2,201,942 compared to a loss of $842,843 in the budget.  The year-to-date operating 

margin is -4.86%, compared to -1.90% in the budget. 

 

The total net loss for November is $682,827, compared to a loss of $64,287 in the budget. 

This represents a total profit margin of -7.90% compared to the budget of -.73%. Year-to-

date, the total net loss is $2,280,740, compared to a total net loss of $767,421 in the 

budget.  This represents a YTD profit margin of -5.03% compared to -1.73% in the 

budget.  

 

REVENUE.  Revenue decreased in November from the prior month, coming in at 

$18,556,828, over budget by $869,739. Inpatient revenue is under budget by $37,210, 

hospital outpatient revenue is over budget by $677,070 and the Clinic is over budget by 

$229,879.  Year to date, revenue is over budget by $3,023,181. 

 

VOLUME. Inpatient discharges, patient days and births are under budget for November. 

The average daily census (ADC) remained the same at 13.4, under budget, and average 

length of stay (LOS) is at 3.3, slightly under budget. Emergency Room visits are over 

budget.  Total Outpatient visits are under budget in November.  Surgeries and Clinic 

volumes are over budget.   

 

Annual Debt Service Coverage came in at 2.22. Days of Cash on Hand increased to 99.1 

days with the receipt of the Medicaid QRA payment and the high collections.  Daily cash 

expense decreased to $285,500 year to date.  

 

REDUCTION OF REVENUE.  Deductions from revenue are 54.1% in November, over 

budget due to higher numbers in Medicare and Self Pay AR.  Deductions of Revenue are 

51.7% year-to-date, right at budget.  Total collections for the month came in at 

$9,847,531 as we continue to catch up on delayed coding and billing from the Cerner 

conversion.  

 

Net days in AR fell to 65.9 days as we continue to catch up the delayed coding, billing 

and collections related to the Cerner conversion. With the delays in Cerner billing, we did 

see an increase in the aging percentages of all payers.  In November, we saw these 

percentages come down closer to, or below our goals. 

 

EXPENSES.  Total expenses in November came in lower than the prior month at 

$9,330,268, still over budget by $446,176.  The following line items were over budget in 

November: 

26/60



 

 

Salary and Wage – November was over budget as we continue to have double 

coverage for nursing as the new hires are oriented.  We have also seen increased 

overtime to keep the departments staffed appropriately.  

 

Fringe Benefits - Group Health, Retirement and Other Employee Benefits were 

all over budget in November. 

 

Contract Labor – We are starting to see this expense decrease from the prior 

year, down by 69% from a high in May 2022.  Staffing shortages continue in 

some clinical areas with current contract labor staff in Med/Surg, ICU, Labor & 

Delivery, Surgery, Emergency Room, Laboratory, Respiratory, and Behavioral 

Health.  While the number of contract FTEs remained at 21, we are seeing the 

impact of negotiating traveler rates when renewing contracts.  

 

Supplies – Supply costs continue to be impacted by inflation and supply chain 

issues.  Radioactive material, drugs, food and maintenance supplies all came in 

over budget in November.  The increase in drug costs corresponds to the 

increased volumes in Medical Oncology and Women’s Health.   

 

Other Operating Expenses – Physician recruitment, Employee recruitment and 

Pharmacy Floor expenses came in over budget in November.  Foundation 

expenses were also over budget and were offset by Foundation revenue included 

in other operating revenue. 

 

Leases and Rentals – Equipment rent lease is over budget for the Nuclear 

Medicine equipment lease which did not qualify for the new GASB 87 rule. 

 

Depreciation & Amortization – This expense is over budget with the reclass of 

operating leases to assets with the new GASB 87 rule. 

 

 

PROVIDER CLINIC.   Revenue for the Clinics came in over budget at $2,202,509, 

over budget by $229,879.  The bottom line for the Clinics in November is a loss of 

$437,500 compared to a loss of $434,488 in the budget.  The year-to-date loss is 

$2,082,752, compared to a budgeted loss of $2,389,901. Clinic volumes were up in 

November and over budget at 6,174 visits. Total Clinic expenses for the month are 

$1,692,162, over budget by $108,975. Salary & Wage, Benefits, Purchased Services, 

Supplies, BioMed repairs and Pharmacy Floor expense are over budget for November. 

 

OUTLOOK FOR DECEMBER.  Gross patient revenue for December is projecting 

higher at $20 million, over budget.  Inpatient volumes are over budget in December.  Our  

LOS has increased to 3.3, slightly under budget of 3.5. Births are projecting under budget 

in December. The average daily census is at 17.6.  Outpatient volumes across most 

departments are projecting higher than budget.  

27/60



  

Collections are projecting to $10.4 million and are expected to remain high as we start to 

collect on the prior high revenue months and catch up from the Cerner implementation.  

Deductions of revenue are expected to remain higher than normal with the inflated AR 

numbers in Medicare and Self Pay.  Expenses should remain lower in December, but still 

over budget with the increased cost of supplies.  We have started to see some relief from 

staffing shortages and the need for contract labor.  The bottom line for December is 

estimated at breakeven, which would be under the budgeted gain of $600k. 

 

We continue to watch all spending as we start the new fiscal year.  We continue to see the 

impact of contract labor and increased cost of supplies due to inflation.  We recommend 

continuing to limit capital purchases unless it is emergent or regulatory. 

 

CLA Revenue Assessment.  CLA presented its final report from their charge capture 

assessment and claims review, comparing our current charging practices to industry 

benchmarks including volumes pre and post Cerner conversion. We have met with 

revenue cycle leaders, Informatics and select department managers to create and action 

plans based on CLA recommendations.  We will continue to report on the progress of the 

plans going forward.  We have also created short and long term goals aligned with the 

revenue cycle to track the progress. 

 

Legacy System and Archiving.  We are working on the archival plan for all our legacy 

systems.  The T-System archival is complete and OBIX is currently being worked on.  

We have started data review to start on Clintegrity.  QCPR Flex, Affinity, and eMDs  are 

being coordinated.  These systems are currently being supported and we would like to 

archive the systems as soon as possible to save on support costs.  The systems need to be 

completely static and read only before they can be archived.  Affinity and eMDs still 

have active accounts receivable. 

 

Financial Goals.  We have chosen two financial metrics to focus on for the current fiscal 

year: Days Cash on Hand and Days in Accounts Receivable. 

 

 Days Cash on Hand represents the number of days the hospital can operate 

without cash receipts utilizing all sources of cash available.  We have set a short-

term goal of 100 days by December 31 and long term goals of 115 days by March 

31 and 130 days by June 30, the end of the fiscal year. 

 

 Days in Accounts Receivable represents the number of days of patient charges 

tied up in unpaid patient accounts.  We have set a short-term goal of 70 days by 

December 31, 60 days by March 31 and 51 days by year end. 

 

In addition to these main goals, we have set goals for some corresponding financial 

metrics that are impacting the revenue cycle: 

 

 DNFB Days – Discharged Not Final Billed days.  There are several reasons 

for accounts to fall under DNFB including a standard delay, or abeyance 

28/60



period, of 5 days.  This means all accounts are held automatically for 5 days 

before being released for billing.  This allows for all charges to be posted, 

charts documented and coded.  We have set the goal for DNFB days at 5 days 

by the end of the year, equal to our 5 day abeyance period for billing accounts.  

  

 Total Accounts Receivable aging – These goals were set based on national 

benchmarks received from CLA and the goals will be set as follows:  Days 

over 90 days set be < 20% of total AR, days over 120 days set at < 5% of total 

AR and days over 180 days set at < 3%. 

 

 Days in AR by Payer – These metrics show more detail of where our aging 

AR is allocated.  These goals have always been reported in the monthly 

financial statements, but we will be showing the trends through the end of the 

fiscal year.  These goals are as follows:   

o BCBS – Days in AR > 90 days should be less than 10% 

o Insurance Days in AR > 90 days should be less than 15% 

o Medicaid Days in AR > 90 days should be less than 20% 

o Medicare Days in AR > 60 days should be less than 6% 

 

29/60



30/60



31/60



32/60



33/60



34/60



35/60



36/60



37/60



38/60



39/60



40/60



41/60



42/60



43/60



44/60



45/60



Financial Goals – Fiscal Year 2023.  We have chosen two financial metrics to focus on for the current 

fiscal year: Days Cash on Hand (DCOH) and Days in Accounts Receivable (AR).  We have included the 

historical average of 18 months prior to Cerner implementation for reference. 

 Days Cash on Hand represents the number of days the hospital can operate without cash 

receipts utilizing all sources of cash available.  We have set a short-term goal of 100 days 

by December 31 and long-term goals of 115 days by March 31 and 130 days by June 30, 

the end of the fiscal year. 
 

o With the matching funds from QRA and the high collections in November, we 

saw an increase in DCOH of 21 days.  We are on target to meet the December 

goal of 100 days. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

179

85.05 
78.44 

99.11 

85.00 85 89 
100 105 110 115 120 125 130 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

Days Cash on Hand

Days Cash on Hand DCOH Goal

46/60



 Days in Accounts Receivable represents the number of days of patient charges tied up in 

unpaid patient accounts.  We have set a short-term goal of 70 days by December 31, 60 

days by March 31 and 51 days by year end. 

 

o We use a 3-month average calculation in the financial statements for this metric.  

Days in AR for November came in at 63.8.  We may look at changing the year-

end goal as we continue to see it drop with the positive results in billing and 

coding. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

48.7

76.46 
71.42 

63.82 

80 80 

73 
70 

67 
63 

60 
57 

54 
51 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

Gross Days in AR

Gross Days in AR Days in AR Goal

47/60



Revenue Cycle Goals – Fiscal Year 2023 - In addition to these main goals, we have set goals for some 

corresponding financial metrics that are impacting the revenue cycle: 

 

 DNFB Days – Discharged Not Final Billed days.  These are patient accounts where the 

patient has been discharged but the account has not been sent for billing.  Several 

categories of accounts fall under DNFB including billing holds, corrections required, 

credit balances, waiting for coding, ready to bill and the standard delay.  The standard 

delay, or abeyance period, are accounts held automatically for 5 days before being 

released for billing.  This allows for all charges to be posted, charts documented and 

coding to be completed.  We have set the goal for DNFB days at 5 days by the end of the 

year, equal to our 5-day abeyance period for billing accounts.   

 

o DNFB Days are at 10.06 for November and 9.46 mid-December. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20.00 

15.00 

12.00 
11.00 

10.00 10.00 10.00 
9.00 

8.00 
7.00 

6.00 
5.00 

5.06

19.21 

12.21 

15.82 

11.77 

10.06 9.46 

 -

 5.00

 10.00

 15.00

 20.00

 25.00

DNFB Days

DNFB Days Goal DNFB Days

48/60



 Total Accounts Receivable aging – These goals were set based on national 

benchmarks received from CLA and are set as follows:   

 

o Days over 90 days set be < 20% of total AR 

o Days over 120 days set at < 5% of total AR  

o Days over 180 days set at < 3% of total AR 

 

 We also show the metrics from December 31, 2021, as comparison data from pre-

Cerner. 

 

o Days over 90 days and 120 days improved to 29% and 23% in November 

o Days over 180 days remained steady at 14% in November 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

22%

20%

16%

5%

10%

3%

30%

20%

8%

33%

26%

13%

29%

23%

14%

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Over 90 days - < 20%

Goal < 20%

Over 120 days - < 5%

Goal < 5%

Over 180 days - < 3%

Goal < 3%

Total AR Aging

 November  October  September December 21

49/60



 Days in AR by Payer – These metrics show more detail of where our aging AR is 

allocated.  These goals have always been reported in the monthly financial 

statements, but we will be showing the trends through the end of the fiscal year.  

These goals are as follows:   

 

o BCBS Days in AR > 90 days should be less than 10% 

o Insurance Days in AR > 90 days should be less than 15% 

o Medicaid Days in AR > 90 days should be less than 20% 

o Medicare Days in AR > 60 days should be less than 6% 
 

 

 

 

4.99%

11.67%

7.99%

3.58%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

14.00%

Blue Cross > 90 days

Percentage of Blue Cross Receivable > 90 Days - < 10% Goal < 10%

15.94%

35.09%
31.75%

33.95%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

40.00%

Insurance > 90 days

Percentage of Insurance Receivable > 90 Days - < 15% Goal < 15%

50/60



 

  

 

 

 

 

18.54%

29.92%

28.95%

21.66%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Medicaid > 90 days

Percentage of Medicaid Receivable > 90 Days - <20% Goal < 20%

1.95%

30.30% 31.13%

13.36%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%

30.00%

35.00%

Medicare > 60 days

Percentage of Medicare Receivable > 60 Days - <6% Goal < 6%

51/60



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…December Buildings & Grounds Meeting 
Date:  December 26, 2022 
 
Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room…the plans and specs are nearly complete and have been sent to 
the cost estimator in Colorado. It is anticipated that the plans/specs and cost estimate will be 
ready for Committee review at the January meeting of the Committee. 
 
Dr. Sulentich’s Office…work is occuring. A state inspection is scheduled for early January. 
 
Building Automation System…Work is continuing, consisting of fine tuning. The major effort left 
to complete is a complete balancing. It is anticipated that the project should be completed 
sometime in January. 
 
Bulk Oxygen…The Hospital/MOB connection has been completed. Air Gas is concerned about 
getting their spare tank back. Concern has been raised about the schedule and the impact of 
winter weather on the project. 
 
MOB Space Renovation…The former MOB conference room now houses some medical 
personnel. A local contractor has done the work…staff is pleased with the work. It was reported 
that the renovation of the break room is on hold for now. 
 
Lightning Arrest System…the Hospital should have a proposal from Wyoelectric sometime after 
the first of the year. 
 
SLIB Projects…Irene went over the events surrounding the SLIB meeting. As the Board knows, 
the Lab project was approved and the MOB Entrance project was withdrawn. Staff will meet 
with Plan One in early January to commence design work. Staff will meet with the County 
Commissioners in January to secure confirmation of the $3M match. This project should be bid 
out as soon as feasible so we can have the best possibility to get a good general contractor on 
board. 
 
Building and Grounds Plan…staff is working on getting some rough cost parameters for the 
various projects in the proposed plan. This plan will be presented to the Board one it is ready. 
 
For more detailed information, please refer to the B & G Committee meeting minutes. 

52/60



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

December 20, 2022 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on December 20, 2022, 

at 3:30 PM with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Mr. Ed Tardoni – Trustee 

   Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

   Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects    

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Mr. Tardoni made a motion to approve the 

agenda.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the November 15, 2022 meeting. Mr. 

Horan made a motion to approve the minutes.  Ms. Richardson seconded; motion passed.  

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Horan reviewed the metrics are staying consistent and are showing a trend.  Mr. Tardoni said 

the trend will justify any staffing needs.  Mr. Horan said they did have some overtime the last two 

pay periods due to snow removal with the storms.  Mr. Kelsey asked if they had any reported slips 

or falls.  Mr. Horan said we had not.  There was discussion regarding legal advice on maintaining 

parking lots during the winter. 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Pharmacy Chemo Mixing Room  

 

Mr. Wheatley said the 85% complete document set were completed this week and they have been 

sent to the Estimator.  Mr. Jake Blevins was onsite today for field confirmations of “as built” plans 

and did see some need for revisions.  Mr. Wheatley said they should have the estimate at the 

beginning of the year and the complete plans ready for Committee review.  Mr. Tardoni said he 

would come onsite to review the desk set with Mr. Horan.  The estimate will be ready for review 

and approval at the January committee meeting.   

 

 Dr. Sulentich Office  

 

Mr. Wheatley said they are underway now as they started last week.  They are moving quickly 

and reacting on the fly.  They did find some concerns above the ceiling that will require some 

demo and duct moving.  The schedule is on time for State inspection January 10. 

 

 

 

 

53/60



 

 

Minutes of the December 20, 2022, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Horan said Vaughn’s and Harris have been here on and off making minor adjustments.  The 

system has been installed but there is still the need for balancing the entire system.  He said this 

project will carry over into next month.  

 

Bulk Oxygen  

 

Mr. Horan said the MOB/Hospital connection was completed over the weekend after some delays 

due to receiving ordered parts.  He said Gerry Johnston is working with Wylie Construction on the 

schedule.  Air Gas was also onsite as they need their spare tank back.  Mr. Horan fears that Wylie 

may want to hold off for several months due to the delay and now being in the winter months.  

 

MOB Space Renovation  

 

Mr. Horan said Medical Staff Services has moved into their new space in the former MOB 

conference room.  No major renovations were needed, and we were able to use a local contractor 

for the work.  The renovation of the break room into a conference room is on hold for now.  Mr. 

Kelsey asked who the contract was.  Mr. Horan said we use A&B Home Improvements for minor 

constructions around the hospital. 

 

 

Tabled Projects  

 

Lightning Arrest System 

 

Mr. Horan said he talked to Wyoelectric, the contractor who received the UL training.  

They are working on a proposal for the beginning of the year 

 

OB Shower Renovation  

 

Mr. Kelsey confirmed this project is still tabled for after the new year. 

 

No other table projects were discussed. 

 

 

Old Business - Other 

 

SLIB Projects 

 

Mr. Kelsey commended the staff that worked on this and presented it to the SLIB Board.  Ms. 

Richardson said OSLI kept delaying the SLIB meeting time.  She said we had a visit from the 

Secretary of State last week as he was touring some of the projects.  He had said there was some 

concern whether our project would meet the requirements of the grant funds.  Ms. Richardson 

said they had a lengthy discussion with him regarding the use of our Cares Act funds and all 

taxpayer funds we receive.  The SLIB meeting was last Thursday, and our project was 

recommended for $0 funding.  We did forfeit the MOB Entrance project.  The Secretary of State 

did recommend our project, it was seconded and the project was approved by the SLIB Board.  

54/60



 

 

Minutes of the December 20, 2022, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

Ms. Richardson said we also received another grant for $500k to renovate the Foundation area 

once the Lab project is complete.  She said we are asking to be put on the January County 

Commission meeting to confirm the $3 million in match money for the Lab project as they had 

agreed to splitting the funds between the two projects.  Mr. Kelsey thanked everyone involved 

again.  He asked if we should lay some ground work for the three new Commissioners prior to 

the meeting.  Mr. Tardoni agreed and said the two other Commissioners were in favor of this 

project.  Ms. Love said they have scheduled a meeting for the first week of January to start 

working on next steps with PlanOne.  With all the projects approved across the State, we want to 

make sure we can secure a contractor.  Mr. Kelsey agreed to get started sooner than later.  

 

Building and Grounds Annual Plan 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked if there had been any progress on the annual plan.  Mr. Horan said he did get 

some estimates from PlanOne and filled those in.  Mr. Kelsey said he let the Board know we are 

working on this plan and he will want to present it to them when we are ready.  Mr. Tardoni 

recommended language for the cost estimates as we will need to get actual numbers once these 

projects get started.    

 

New Business 

 

None. 

 

Other 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked Mr. Wheatley who they use as their estimator.  He said they use someone from 

Colorado and Arizona, and he is very knowledgeable on the Sweetwater County costs.  Mr. 

Wheatley said there is some good news regarding construction holds.  They are seeing costs 

stabilize and even some decline in some costs.  He said this will help with upcoming Lab project.  

 

Ms. Richardson reminded us that the Lab project included a second floor which will help 

alleviate some of our space issues.  

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, January 17, 2023.   

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 4:14 pm and wished everyone a Merry Christmas. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

55/60



56/60



57/60



58/60



59/60



60/60


	Agenda - January 4 2023 Mtg
	Our Mission and Vision
	Minutes
	Workplace Violence Prevention Policy
	Workplace Violence Prevention Program
	Finance and Audit Committee Charter
	Quality Committee
	Human Resource Chair Report 12.22 Kandi Pendleton
	Human Resources Minutes December 21 2022 Draft
	F&A November 22 Narrative report Tami Love
	F&A 23 MHSC Combined Financial Statements 113022
	F&A Financial Goal Graphs - November
	Buildings and Grounds Committee...Chair&apos;s Report...December 2022 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes December 20 2022 Draft Tami Love
	iProtean Subscription Agreement

